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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 

 
Introduction 
 
The following discussion and analysis provides an overview of the financial position and 
activities of the Hudson County Community College (College) for the fiscal years ending June 
30, 2015 and 2014 with comparative information from previous fiscal years.  This discussion has 
been prepared by management and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements 
including the notes thereto, which follow this section. 
 
Using the Financial Statements 
 
The College’s financial report includes three basic financial statements:  the Statements of Net 
Position, the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position and the Statements 
of Cash Flows.   These statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America and Government Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) pronouncements.   The College presents financial statements in accordance with 
GASB Statement No. 34, “Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis – for State and Local Governments” and  GASB Statement No. 35, “Basic Financial 
Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for Public Colleges and 
Universities”.  The statements establish standards for external financial reporting for public 
colleges and universities and require that financial statements be presented on a consolidated 
basis to focus better on the College as a whole.   Resources are classified into three net asset 
categories – unrestricted, restricted and invested in capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation and related debt.     The College’s financial statements also include the Hudson 
County Community College Foundation as a discretely presented component unit in accordance 
with the requirements of Section 2100 of GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and 
Financial Reporting Standards, as amended by GASB 39. 
 
Statements of Net Position 
 
The statements of net position present the financial position of the College at the end of the fiscal 
year and include all assets and liabilities of the College.  The difference between total assets and 
total liabilities (net position) is one indicator of the financial condition of the College, while the 
change in net position is an indicator of whether the financial condition has improved or declined 
during the year.  The statement states two asset and liability classifications; a) current assets and 
liabilities that are less than one year and b) non-current assets and liabilities that are more than 
one year.  There are three net position classifications a) investment in capital assets, net of 
related debt b) restricted assets (expendable and non-expendable) and c) unrestricted assets.   
 
Total net position increased $8,551,242 to $129,307,834 with unrestricted net position increasing 
$2,691,869 to $5,601,686 and net investment in capital assets increasing $5,865,335 to 
$123,667,568. 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 

 
A summary of the College’s assets, liabilities and net position at June 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013, 
respectively: 
  

 2015*  2014* 2013

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Unrestricted:
Cash 29,153,132$      27,037,342$      19,081,091$      
Accounts Receivable 976,901             1,131,354          1,158,323          
Grants Receivable 1,663,104          2,015,755          4,030,386          
Due from State of New Jersey 378,143             481,245             -                         
Due from County of Hudson 2,081,299          2,502,203          2,535,269          
Other Receivables 32,275               137,808             79,387               
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 54,183               42,050               104,718             

Total Current Assets 34,339,037        33,347,757        26,989,174        

Noncurrent Assets:
Security Deposits 76,579               86,579               86,579               
Capital Assets, Net 123,667,568      117,802,233      104,922,326      

Total Noncurrent Assets 123,744,147      117,888,812      105,008,905      
Total Assets 158,083,184      151,236,569      131,998,079      

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 1,624,942          886,640             -                         

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Payable from Unrestricted Assets:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 4,196,558          5,778,017          4,396,771          
Accrued Salaries and Benefits 667,058             1,276,432          1,132,235          
Unearned Revenue 845,232             644,577             562,034             
Compensated Absences 867,385             908,160             900,056             

Total Current Liabilities: 6,576,233          8,607,186          6,991,096          

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Student Deposits 854,110             721,355             464,673             
Compensated Absences 1,620,466          1,607,430          1,598,153          
Net Pension Liability 20,149,451        20,430,646        -                         

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 22,624,027        22,759,431        2,062,826          
Total Liabilities 29,200,260        31,366,617        9,053,922          

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 1,200,032          -                         -                         

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 123,667,568      117,802,233      104,922,326      
Restricted Nonexpendable 38,580               44,542               44,542               
Unrestricted 5,601,686          2,909,817          17,977,289        

Total Net Position 129,307,834$    120,756,592$    122,944,157$    

 
∗ In 2015 the College implemented GASB Statement No. 68 which requires the College to recognize 

their proportionate share of their collective net pension liability, deferred inflows of resources, 
outflows of resources and pension expense. As a result the 2014 financial statements were restated 
with a prior year adjustment of $20,430,646 to net position to recognize the net pension liability. 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 

 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net position 
 
A summary of the College’s revenues, expenses and changes in net position for the years ended 
June 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013, respectively: 
 

 2015*  2014* 2013

OPERATING REVENUES
Student Tuition and Fees 32,300,072$      31,659,287$      30,876,504$      
Less: Student Financial Aid (23,392,026)       (22,745,651)       (23,813,370)       

8,908,046          8,913,636          7,063,134          

Government Grants 35,978,291        34,251,931        34,919,773        
Local and Private Sponsored Programs 683,637             690,175             664,409             
Other Operating Revenues 639,777             764,192             703,343             

Total Operating Revenues 46,209,751        44,619,934        43,350,659        

OPERATING EXPENSES
Instruction 20,350,714        19,989,413        21,249,336        
Academic Support 2,804,404          2,567,180          2,486,084          
Student Services 4,232,248          3,881,924          3,948,847          
Institutional Support 17,050,625        14,146,140        14,544,279        
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 5,937,308          5,257,811          5,201,328          
Conference Center 309,224             269,818             318,458             
Student Aid 9,901,564          9,612,465          3,155,473          
Depreciation 4,253,897          3,409,986          7,801,204          

Total Operating Expenses 64,839,984        59,134,737        58,705,009        

Loss from Operations (18,630,233)       (14,514,803)       (15,354,350)       

NONOPERATING REVENUES
State of New Jersey Appropriations 6,698,135          6,605,660          6,715,716          
Hudson County Appropriations 11,748,568        10,418,409        10,032,244        
Interest Income 28,064               19,716               11,508               

Total Nonoperating Revenues 18,474,767        17,043,785        16,759,468        

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position
Before Capital Appropriations (155,466)            2,528,982          1,405,118          

Capital Appropriations 8,706,708          15,714,099        9,200,879          

Change in Net Position 8,551,242          18,243,081        10,605,997        
Net Position, July 1 120,756,592      122,944,157      119,014,150      
Prior year adjustment to recognize net pension liability -                         (20,430,646)       (6,675,990)         
Net Position, June 30 129,307,834$    120,756,592$    122,944,157$    

 
 
∗ In 2015 the College implemented GASB Statement No. 68 which requires the College to recognize 

their proportionate share of their collective net pension liability, deferred inflows of resources, 
outflows of resources and pension expense. As a result the 2014 financial statements were restated 
with a prior year adjustment of $20,430,646 to net position to recognize the net pension liability. 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 

 
The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position presents the results of operation 
for the College as a whole.  Revenues, expenses and other changes in net position are reported as 
either operating or non-operating.  Significant recurring sources of college revenue, state and 
county appropriations and investment earnings, are defined by GASB Statement No. 35 as non-
operating.   
 
The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net position reflect a decrease in changes 
in net position before capital appropriations of $2,684,448 and an overall decrease in change in 
net position of $9,691,839.   

 
This overall decrease is mainly attributed to an increase in operating expenses of $5,705,247 
with institutional support increasing the most by $2,904,485.  This increase in operating 
expenses was offset by increases in operating and Nonoperating revenues.  Operating revenues 
increased $1,589,817 mainly because of an increase of $1,726,360 in government grants while 
student tuition and fees remained stable.  Nonoperating revenues increased $1,430,982 mainly 
because of an increased of $1,330,159 in Hudson County Appropriations.   
 
Capital appropriations decreased by $7,007,391 because of the number of open capital projects 
utilizing Chapter 12 funding have been nearing completion. 

 
A comparison of major revenues by source for 2015 and 2014 is as follows: 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 

 
Revenue 
 
The College received operating and nonoperating revenue from the following main sources: 
• Tuition and Fee Revenue 
• Federal Grants 
• State of New Jersey Grants 
• Local Grants 
• State of New Jersey Appropriation, and 
• County of Hudson Appropriation 

 
The following is a graphic illustration of revenue by source for the year ended June 30, 2015: 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 

 
Expenses 
 
A comparison of operating expenses by function and natural classifications for the year ended 
June 30, 2015 is as follows: 

EXPENSES BY FUNCTION 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 

 
Capital 
 
In 2015, Hudson County Community College continued to implement the College’s facilities 
Master Plan through building projects consisting of renovations of acquired facilities and 
construction of new facilities.  
 
The goal of the facilities master plan are to meet significant student enrollment growth, 
implement new academic programs, expand current programs, develop the remaining portion of 
the college campus and continue to move from lease facilities to college owned facilities. 
 
During 2015 the College continued the construction of the Library project at 65-79 Sip Avenue. 
The estimated project cost is $36 million and is funded by the County.  The College also started 
construction of the STEM Project at 257 Academy Street.  The estimated project cost is $30 
million and will be funded from County and State Chapter 12 funds and other revenue sources.    
 
The College had $10,119,232 in capital additions during 2015 of which $8,706,708 was funded 
by capital appropriations and $16,289,893 during 2014 of which $15,714,099 was funded by 
capital appropriations.  The capital additions primarily comprised building and improvements, 
investment in equipment and construction in progress.   
 
During 2015 the College was approved for $9,712,052 in capital projects of which $5,735,082 
are funded by the County and $3,976,970 by the State.  The unexpended balance of capital 
appropriations for projects was $7,594,596 at June 30, 2015.  
 
The cost of expansion is a major challenge for the College.  The addition of physical space and 
the implementation of new instructional technologies can add significant operating expenses that 
may exceed revenues or new revenues.  The College continues to explore ways in which to 
expand academic offerings to support enrollments and potential sources of revenue.   
 
Other Economic and Financial Considerations  
 
The following is a description of currently known facts, decisions, or conditions that are 
expected to have a significant effect on the financial position (net position) or results of 
operation (revenues, expenses, and other changes in net position) of the College. 
 
The College has an internal plant fund capital projects fund balance of $6,722,902 at June 30, 
2015.  This fund balance has been internally designated to cover plant and renewal projects, 
technology projects, and supplement Chapter 12 projects. 
 
The College student credit enrollments have fluctuated over the years.  The Fall 2014 credit 
hours were 101,360 which increased from Fall 2013 which were 99,552. 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 

 
Revenues for State Appropriations in  2014 increased $92,475 to $6,698,135. Revenues for 
County Appropriations in  2014 increased $1,330,159 to $11,748,568. 
 
The College will increase tuition rates in 2016 to 122.00 per credit or 5% over 2015.  In 2015 
there was an increase of 3.50 per credit or 3% over 2014 to $116.00 a credit.  The College tuition 
rate is in the middle range of the 19 New Jersey Community Colleges and the lowest of the 
surrounding local sector.  
 
The labor contracts with three Unions: Adjunct, Administrators, and Support Staff have expired.  
The college is in negotiations with them.  The Faculty Union contract will expire on June 2017.  
 
The cost of employee pensions (PERS) paid in the past by the State continues to be charged to 
the College.  The liability for 2015 is $886,640. 
 
The College has a managed services agreement with Ellucian for ERP support.  The current 
contract had an expiration date of July 2020 with an option to renew through June, 2022. 
 
The College has entered in a three (3) year College security outsource contract which will 
expired on  June 30, 2017.  The total security cost was $1.8 million during 2015. 
 
Effective July 1, 2012 the college has entered into a three year agreement with a vendor to 
provide custodial services.  The contract has expired as of December 31, 2014 and is on a month 
to month basis.  During 2015 total custodial costs were $1.8 million. 
 
The College projects no significant growth in county funding and reduced or level funding from 
the State.  With approximately 54% of the total College operating budget being personnel or 
labor driven, it is important that most programs and their services cover their costs. 
 
The College was accredited by the Middle States Accreditations for ten (10) years, through 2018. 
 
Contacting the Hudson County Community College’s Financial Management  
 
The Management Discussion and Analysis of this financial report is designed to provide the 
reader with a snapshot of the Hudson County Community College’s finances.  Questions about 
this report or additional financial information can be requested from the Finance Department 
located at 26 Journal Square, Jersey City NJ 07306. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 

To the Board of Trustees 
Hudson County Community College 
Jersey City, New Jersey 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Hudson County Community 
College (the “College”), a component unit of Hudson County, New Jersey, as of and for the 
years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the College’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  
The financial statements of the Hudson County Community College Foundation, Inc., the 
discretely presented component unit of the College, were audited by other auditors for the years 
ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, whose report dated November 5, 2015 expressed an unmodified 
opinion on those statements. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement. 
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinions. 
 
Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the Hudson County Community College as of June 30, 2015 and 
2014, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for 
the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 1-8 and required pension information on pages 43-
45 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part 
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in 
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
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Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the College’s basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards and state financial assistance are presented for purposes of additional analysis as 
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and New Jersey Office of Management and Budget 
Circular 04-04 and/or 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and 
State Aid, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
 
The schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards and state financial assistance are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 
basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
 
Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncement 
 
As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2015 the College adopted GASB Statement 
No. 68 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pension and for comparative purpose has 
accordingly restated the financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014 with a 
prior year adjustment of net position. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 
15, 2016, on our consideration of the College’s internal control over financial reporting and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the College’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 

      _____________________________    
DONOHUE, GIRONDA, DORIA 
& TOMKINS, LLC  
Certified Public Accountants 

 
Bayonne, New Jersey 
March 15, 2016 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey)

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

Restated
2015 2014

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Unrestricted:
Cash 29,153,132$      27,037,342$      
Accounts Receivable 976,901             1,131,354          
Due from State of New Jersey 378,143             481,245             
Due from County of Hudson 2,081,299          2,502,203          
Other Receivables 32,275               137,808             
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 54,183               42,050               

Total Unrestricted 32,675,933        31,332,002        

Restricted:
Grants Receivable 1,663,104          2,015,755          

Total Current Assets 34,339,037        33,347,757        

Noncurrent Assets:
Security Deposits 76,579               86,579               
Capital Assets, Net 123,667,568      117,802,233      

Total Noncurrent Assets 123,744,147      117,888,812      

Total Assets 158,083,184      151,236,569      

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Pension Liability 1,624,942          886,640             

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Payable from Unrestricted Assets:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 3,345,294          4,613,475          
Accrued Salaries and Benefits 667,058             1,276,432          
Unearned Revenue 829,828             626,617             
Other Accrued Liabilities 339,310             419,730             
Compensated Absences 867,385             908,160             

Payable from Restricted Assets:
Other Accrued Liabilities 511,954             744,812             
Unearned Revenue 15,404               17,960               

Total Current Liabilities: 6,576,233          8,607,186          

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Student Deposits 854,110             721,355             
Compensated Absences 1,620,466          1,607,430          
Net Pension Liability 20,149,451        20,430,646        

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 22,624,027        22,759,431        

Total Liabilities 29,200,260        31,366,617        

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Pension Liability 1,200,032          -                         

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 123,667,568      117,802,233      
Restricted Nonexpendable 38,580               44,541               
Unrestricted 5,601,686          2,909,818          

Total Net Position 129,307,834$    120,756,592$    

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey)

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

Restated
2015 2014

OPERATING REVENUES
Student Tuition and Fees 32,300,072$      31,659,287$      
Less: Student Financial Aid (23,392,026)       (22,745,651)       

8,908,046          8,913,636          

Federal Grant Awards 30,238,198        28,747,866        
State Financial Assistance 5,740,093          5,504,065          
Local and Private Sponsored Programs 683,637             690,175             
Other Operating Revenues 639,777             764,192             

Total Operating Revenues 46,209,751        44,619,934        

OPERATING EXPENSES
Instruction 20,350,714        19,989,413        
Academic Support 2,804,404          2,567,180          
Student Services 4,232,248          3,881,924          
Institutional Support 17,050,625        14,146,140        
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 5,937,308          5,257,811          
Conference Center 309,224             269,818             
Student Aid 9,901,564          9,612,465          
Depreciation 4,253,897          3,409,986          

Total Operating Expenses 64,839,984        59,134,737        

Loss from Operations (18,630,233)       (14,514,803)       

NONOPERATING REVENUES
State of New Jersey Appropriations 6,698,135          6,605,660          
Hudson County Appropriations 11,748,568        10,418,409        
Interest Income 28,064               19,716               

Total Nonoperating Revenues 18,474,767        17,043,785        

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position
Before Capital Appropriations (155,466)            2,528,982          

Capital Appropriations 8,706,708          15,714,099        

Change in Net Position 8,551,242          18,243,081        
Net Position, July 1 120,756,592      122,944,157      
Prior year adjustment to recognize net pension liability -                         (20,430,646)       
Net Position, June 30 129,307,834$    120,756,592$    

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

Restated
2015 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Tuition and Fees 9,265,710$        9,005,188$        
Governmental Grants 36,319,551        35,693,313        
Nongovernmental Grants and Contracts 692,472             742,828             
Other Operating Receipts 745,310             705,771             
Payments for Employee Salaries and Benefits (35,359,780)       (32,635,868)       
Payments to Suppliers (17,364,913)       (12,757,566)       
Payments to Students for Financial Aid (9,901,564)         (9,612,465)         

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities (15,603,214)       (8,858,799)         

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State of New Jersey Appropriations 6,801,237          6,662,971          
Hudson County Appropriations 12,169,472        10,451,475        
Student Organization Agency Transactions 132,755             256,682             

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 19,103,464        17,371,128        

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Capital Assets (1,412,524)         (575,794)            

Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities (1,412,524)         (575,794)            

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received on Investments 28,064               19,716               

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 28,064               19,716               

Net Increase in Cash 2,115,790          7,956,251          
Cash, July 1 27,037,342        19,081,091        
Cash, June 30 29,153,132$      27,037,342$      

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

Restated
2015 2014

RECONCILIATION OF LOSS FROM OPERATIONS TO NET CASH
USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss from Operations (18,630,233)$     (14,514,803)$     
Adjustments to Reconcile Loss from Operations to

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities:
Depreciation Expense 4,253,897          3,409,986          
Changes in Assets:

Accounts Receivable 154,453             26,969               
Grants Receivable 352,651             1,476,075          
Other Receivables 105,533             (58,421)              
Prepaid Expenses (12,133)              62,668               
Security Deposits 10,000               -                         

Change in Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Deferred Pension Liability (738,302)            (81,173)              

Changes in Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses (1,268,181)         219,167             
Accrued Salaries and Benefits (609,374)            144,197             
Unearned Revenue 200,655             82,543               
Other Accrued Expenses (313,278)            356,612             
Compensated Absences (27,739)              17,381               
Net Pension Liability (281,195)            -                         

Change in Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Deferred Pension Liability 1,200,032          -                         

Total Adjustments 3,027,019          5,656,004          

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities (15,603,214)$     (8,858,799)$       

Non-cash investing, capital and financing activities:
Increase in allowance for uncollectible accounts 1,415,574$        1,110,733$        
Capital Assets aquired through Hudson County Appropriaitons 8,706,708          15,714,099        

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE FOUNDATION

Statements of Financial Position
June 30, 2015 and 2014

                                                               See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

2015 2014

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $            760,322 $            753,227 

Investments            972,290            968,196 

Miscellaneous receivables -                                    1,640 

Prepaid expenses                2,500                2,540 

Property and equipment – net              29,648              32,890 

Library and art collection            198,875            183,125 

Total Assets $         1,963,635 $         1,941,618 

Liabilities

Deferred revenue $              37,200 $              32,200 

Total Liabilities              37,200              32,200 

Net Assets

Unrestricted         1,060,351         1,116,762 

Temporarily restricted            296,442            223,014 

Permanently restricted            569,642            569,642 

Total Net Assets         1,926,435         1,909,418 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $         1,963,635 $         1,941,618 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 
 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Organization 
 
The Hudson County Community  College (the “College”), a component unit of Hudson County, 
New Jersey was established as a unit of the New Jersey Master Plan for Higher Education and is one 
of nineteen  New Jersey county colleges.  The College offers pre-baccalaureate preparation (A.S. 
and A.A. degrees) as well as programs and certificates which are designed to prepare students for 
employment (A.A.S. degrees).  The purpose of the College is to offer high quality programs and 
services which are affordable, accessible, and community centered.  All programs and services are 
designed to meet the educational needs of a diverse community and to promote the economic, 
technological, cultural, social and civic development of Hudson County and its service areas. 
 
Reporting Entity 
 
The financial statements present the College, (a Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey), 
and it’s discretely presented component unit, Hudson County Community College Foundation, Inc.   
 
Basis of Presentation 
 
The College’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments, including public 
colleges and universities, through its pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations).  The College 
is also required to follow Accounting Principle Boards (APB) opinions and, Accounting Research 
Bulletins (ARB) of the Committee on Accounting Procedure, unless those pronouncements conflict 
with or contradict GASB pronouncements.  The College has the option to apply FASB 
pronouncements and APB opinions issued after that date November 30, 1989 and the College has 
chosen to do so.  The more significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the 
College is discussed below. 
 
The College prepares its financial statements in accordance with GASB Statement No. 35, Basic 
Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for Public Colleges and 
Universities. 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 
 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
 
The financial statements are presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. The accompanying financial statements are presented using the 
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  The economic 
resources measurement focus means all assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) are 
included on the statement of net assets and the operating statements present increases (revenues), 
and decreases (expenses) in total net assets.  Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
generally recognized when earned and expenses are recognized at the time the liability is incurred, 
regardless of when the related cash flows take place.   State and County appropriations the activities 
of the College are reported as a business-type activity.  Business type activities are required to be 
used for operations for which a fee is charged to external users for goods or services and the activity 
is financed with debt that is solely secured by a pledge of the net revenues. State and County 
appropriations are recognized as revenue in the year in which the appropriation is first made 
available for use. Grants and donations are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 
 
Accounts Receivable 
 
Accounts receivable primarily consist of tuition and fee charges to students and charge backs due 
from counties.  Accounts receivable are recorded net of estimated uncollectible amounts. 
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets include land, land improvements, buildings and equipment.  Such assets are recorded 
at historical cost.  The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add value to the asset are 
not capitalized.  Major outlays for capital assets are capitalized as projects are constructed.  Capital 
assets are depreciated using the straight-line method.  
 
Restricted Assets 
 
Restricted assets include assets related to grants such as grants receivable and prepaid expenses paid 
for by restricted funds.  When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is 
the College’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 
Grants Receivable  
 
Grants receivable represent amounts expended under grants awarded to the College and have been 
recorded as current funds revenues as expended. 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 
 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Unearned Revenue 
 
Tuition and fee revenues collected during the fiscal year which relate to the period after the fiscal 
year end have been recognized as deferred revenues.  In addition, income from federal, state and 
local grants is deferred and recognized over the periods to which the expenses relate. 
 
Compensated Absences 
 
Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation and 
sick leave.  A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to services already rendered, 
and that are not contingent on a specific event outside the control of the College and its employees, 
is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits. 
 
Pensions 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense of the Public Employees Retirement 
System (PERS) have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERS.  For this 
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due 
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 
 
Deferred Outflows of Resources 
 
Decreases in net position that relate to future periods are reported as deferred outflows of resources 
in a separate section the statement of net position. The only deferred outflow of resources reported is 
for pension resources. 
 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 
 
Increases in net position that relate to future periods are reported as deferred inflows of resources in 
a separate section of the statement of net position. Related revenues are not recognized until a future 
event occurs. The only deferred inflow of resources reported is for pension resources. 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 
 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Equity Classifications 
 
GASB Statement Number 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred 
Inflows of Resources, and Net Position became effective for financial statements for periods 
beginning after December 15, 2011 and established standards for reporting deferred outflows of 
resources, deferred inflows of resources and net position.  The adoption of this statement resulted in 
a change in the presentation of the statement of net assets to what is now referred to as the 
statement of net position and the term "net assets" is changed to "net position" throughout the 
financial statements. 
 
Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred inflows, deferred outflows and 
liabilities in the financial statements. Net investment in capital  assets  consists  of  capital  assets, 
 net  of  accumulated  depreciation,  reduced  by  the outstanding  balance  of  any  long-term debt  
used  to  build  or  acquire  the  capital  assets.  Net positions are reported as restricted in the 
financial statements when there are limitations imposed on their use through external restrictions 
imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments. 
 
Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components: 
 
Net Investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, 
or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those 
assets. 
 
Restricted net position - Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by (1) 
external  groups  such  as  creditors,  grantors,  contributors,  or  laws  or  regulations  of  other 
governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
 
Permanent endowments or permanent fund principal amounts included in the statement of net assets 
requires related restricted net assets to be displayed in two additional components – expendable and 
nonexpendable.  Nonexpendable amounts are those that are required to be retained in perpetuity.  All 
other permanent endowment amounts are reported as expendable amounts.  
 
Unrestricted  net  position  -  All  other  net  position  that  do  not  meet  the  definition  of 
“restricted” or “invested in capital assets, net of related debt.” 
 
 
 
 

22



HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 
 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Revenue Recognition  
 
Student tuition and fees are presented net of scholarships applied to student accounts, while other 
payments made directly to students are presented as scholarship expense, and are recognized in the 
period earned.   
 
Grants and contracts revenue is comprised mainly of revenues received from grants from the State of 
New Jersey and the federal government and are recognized as the related expenses are incurred.  
Amounts received from grants which have not yet been earned under the terms of the agreement is 
recorded as deferred revenue in the accompanying financial statements. Revenue from state and 
county appropriations is recognized in the fiscal year during which the State of New Jersey and 
Passaic County appropriates the funds to the College. 
 
Classification of Revenue 
 
Revenues and expenses are those that serve the College’s principal purpose and generally result 
from exchange transactions, such as payment received for services and payment made for the 
purchase of goods and services.  Operating revenues include: (1) student tuition and fees, net of 
scholarship allowances; (2) sales and services of auxiliary enterprises; and (3) most federal, state, 
and local grants and contracts.  Nonoperating revenues include activities that have the characteristics 
of non-exchange transactions, such as operating and capital appropriations from the state and county 
and net investment income. 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period.   Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Reclassifications 
 
Certain reclassifications were made to the statement of net position as of June 30, 2015 and to the 
statement of revenue, expenses, and changes in net position and the statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended.    
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 
 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncement 
 
The College has adopted GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pension 
and GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to 
Measurement Date – an amendment of GASB No. 68.  GASB No. 68 and No. 71 require 
participating employers in pension plans to recognize their proportionate share of their collective net 
pension liability, collective deferred outflows of resources, collective deferred inflows of resources 
and collective pension expense excluding that attributable to employer-paid member contributions.   
 
As a result the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2014 have been restated with a prior 
year adjustment to net position in the statement of revenue, expenses and changes in net position to 
recognize prior year net pension liability of $20,430,646.  On the statement of net position the net 
pension liability of $20,430,646 was recognized and a deferred outflow of pension liability of 
$886,640 was also recognized with an offsetting accrual of accounts payable. 
 
Other Policies 
 
Other significant accounting policies followed in the preparation of the accompanying financial 
statements are outlined below: 
a) Hudson County is responsible for the issuance of Bonds and Notes for the College’s capital 

expenditures which are financed by Bond Ordinances.  Hudson County is also responsible for 
the payment of interest on issued debt and the retirement of such obligations.  Accordingly, the 
debt is reported in the financial statements of Hudson County and is not included in the 
accompanying financial statements of the College. 
 

b) Hudson County adopts capital ordinances to fund certain capital expenditures of the College.  
The College receives Hudson County Bond monies to fund its plant expenditures.  Unexpended 
money in the current year is generally available for capital expenditures in subsequent years. 
 

c) The College is exempt from federal income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 115. 
 

Date of Management’s Review 
 
Management has evaluated all events through March 15, 2016, the date these financial statements 
were available to be issued. 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 
 

NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  
 
For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the College considers cash and cash equivalents to be 
currency on hand, demand deposits with banks, and investment accounts and liquid investments with 
a maturity of three months or less when purchased. 
 

  The College has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit public funds into the 
New Jersey State Cash Management Fund (“NJSCMF”) or into institutions located in New Jersey 
that are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) or in public depositories 
protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act 
(“GUDPA”).  GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units from loss of funds on 
deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. 
 
N.J.S.A. 17:9-41 et. sec. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental 
units.  The statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a public 
depository unless such funds are secured in accordance with the Act.  Public depositories include 
Savings and Loan institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and savings banks the deposits 
of which are federally insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value 
at least equal to five percent of the average daily balance of collected public funds, to secure the 
deposits of Governmental Units.  If a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the 
collateral of all other public depositories, is available to pay the full amount of their deposits to the 
Governmental Units. 
 
All investments in the NJSCMF are governed by the regulations of the Investment Council, which 
prescribe specific standards designed to insure the quality of investments and to minimize the risks 
related to investments.  In all the years of the Division of Investment’s existence, the Division has 
never suffered a default of principal or interest on any short-term security held by it due to the 
bankruptcy of a securities issuer; nevertheless, the possibility always exists, and for this reason a 
reserve is being accumulated as additional protection for the “Other-than-State” participants by the 
New Jersey Cash Management Fund.  In addition to the Council regulations, the Division sets 
further standards for specific investments and monitors the credit of all eligible securities issuers on 
a regular basis. 
 
All cash and cash equivalents on deposit are partially insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation (herein referred to as “FDIC”) up to $250,000 for each depository.  Deposits in excess 
of FDIC limits are entirely insured or collateralized by a collateral pool maintained by public 
depositories as required by the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act.  
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 
 

NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 
 
As of June 30,  2015 and 2014 the College’s carrying amounts of deposits were $29,153,132 and 
$27,037,342, respectively, and the bank balances were $32,373,865 and $28,107,454, respectively. 
As of June 30,  2015 and 2014, $250,000 of the total deposits were insured by the FDIC, 
$28,259,566 and $26,244,658, respectfully, were invested in the New Jersey State Cash 
Management Fund and remainder was covered by a collateral pool maintained by the bank as 
required by New Jersey statutes in accordance with NJ GUDPA. 
 
The College’s component unit (discretely presented) has deposits which are exposed to custodial 
credit risk.  At, $553,565 and $522,866, respectively, of the Foundations’ bank balances were 
uninsured and the collateral held by the pledging banks’ trust department was not in the 
Foundations’ name. 
 
Bank deposits as of the balance sheet are required to be classified as to credit risk.  Deposits are 
considered to be exposed to custodial credit risk if they are: uncollateralized, collateralized with 
securities held by the pledging financial institution, or collateralized with securities held by the 
pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent but not in the name of the College. 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the College’s deposits may not be 
returned to it. 

 
Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the 
College will not be able to recover deposits or collateral securities that are in the possession of an 
outside party.  The College does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk.  Deposits are 
exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance and the deposits are: 
a. Uncollateralized. 
b. Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution. 
c. Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or 

agent but not in the College’s name. 
 
Foreign Currency Risk – Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will 
adversely affect deposits.  None of the College’s deposits as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 are held in 
foreign currency. 

 
 Under GUDPA, financial institutions are not required to pledge collateral for amounts covered by 

FDIC insurance.  Noninterest-bearing transaction accounts are insured by the Dodd-Frank Deposit 
Insurance Provision of the FDIC.  The amount noted as “GUDPA Insured” above includes deposits 
covered by the Dodd-Frank Provision as well as GUDPA. 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 
 

NOTE 3 -  COMPONENT UNIT 
 
The College adopted the GASB Statement, Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are 
Component Unit.  The GASB Statement establishes additional guidance on the application of 
existing standards for the assessment of potential component units in determining the financial 
reporting entity. 
 
The College Foundation, Inc. (the “Foundation”) was organized under a separate Board of Trustees 
from the College in 2001 for the benefit of the College, faculty and students of the College, and the 
community.  The primary function of the Foundation is to obtain contributions and award 
scholarships. 
 
The Foundation  received a Determination Letter from the Internal Revenue Service concluding that 
it is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.  The 
resources held by the Foundation can only be used by, or for the benefit of, the College.  Therefore, 
the Foundation is considered a component unit of the College and is discretely presented in the 
College’s financial statements. 
 
During the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the Foundation distributed $187,900 and $165,558, 
respectively, to the College for scholarships.  Complete financial statements for the Foundation can 
be obtained from the Finance Department of the College, Jersey City, New Jersey. 
 
The Foundation is a private not-for-profit organization that reports under FASB standards.  As such, 
certain revenue recognition criteria and presentation features are different from GASB revenue 
recognition criteria and presentation features.  No modifications have been made to the Foundation’s 
financial information in the College’s financial reporting entity for these differences. 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 
 

NOTE 4 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
 
At June 30, 2015 and 2014, the College’s accounts receivable were as follows: 
 

2015 2014

Tuition and Fees 17,519,013$      16,260,844$      
County Chargebacks 215                    (2,737)                
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (16,542,327)       (15,126,753)       

Total Accounts Receivable 976,901$           1,131,354$        

Due from State of New Jersey:
Operational Appropriations -$                       481,245$           
Capital Appropriations 378,143             -                         

Total Due from State of New Jersey 378,143$           481,245$           

Due from County of Hudson:
Operational Appropriations -$                       125,000$           
Capital Appropriations 2,081,299          2,377,203          

Total Due from County of Hudson 2,081,299$        2,502,203$        

Grants Receivable:
Federal 1,250,678$        1,555,424$        
State 280,377             319,447             
Local 132,049             140,884             

Total Grants Receivable 1,663,104$        2,015,755$        
 

 
 

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Depreciation expense was $4,253,897 and $3,409,986 for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, 
respectively. 
 
The County of Hudson issued bonds in the amount of $8,900,000 and $4,250,000 during the years 
ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, for the College’s capital projects under the County 
College Bond Act, 1971 NJ Laws C.12, as amended during the year ended June 30, 2010.  The 
County of Hudson made available to the College the Chapter 12 Bond Program funding for the 
acquisition, construction, renovation and furnishing of capital projects in the Union City area and the 
Journal Square area of Jersey City for permanent use by the College.  The total funds remaining 
under the Chapter 12 Bond Program at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, are $7,472,855 and 
$4,328,787. 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 
 

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
 
The detail of capital asset activity for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 is as follows: 
 

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2014 Transfers Additions June 30, 2015

Capital Assets:
Non-Depreciable:

Land 11,733,689$      2,680,073$    -$                       14,413,762$      
Construction in Progress 32,892,553 (37,401,085)   7,917,407          3,408,875

Total Non-Depreciable 44,626,242        (34,721,012)   7,917,407          17,822,637        

Depreciable:
Buildings and Improvements 97,555,376 34,721,012    85,507               132,361,895
Equipment 7,537,398 -                     2,051,914          9,589,312
Library Books 928,351 -                     64,404               992,755

Total Depreciable at Historical Cost 106,021,125      34,721,012    2,201,825          142,943,962      

Less: Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings and Improvements (26,476,147) -                     (3,280,912)         (29,757,059)
Equipment (5,524,224) -                     (942,313)            (6,466,537)
Library Books (844,763) -                     (30,672)              (875,435)

Total Accumulated Depreciation (32,845,134)       -                     (4,253,897)         (37,099,031)       

Depreciable Capital Assets, Net 73,175,991        34,721,012    (2,052,072)         105,844,931      

Capital Assets, Net 117,802,233$    -$                   5,865,335$        123,667,568$    

 
 

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2013 Disposals Additions June 30, 2014

Capital Assets:
Non-Depreciable:

Land 11,733,689$      -$                   -$                       11,733,689$      
Construction in Progress 17,178,454        -                     15,714,099        32,892,553

Total Non-Depreciable 28,912,143        -                     15,714,099        44,626,242        

Depreciable:
Buildings and Improvements 97,532,266        -                     23,110               97,555,376
Equipment 7,027,656          -                     509,742             7,537,398
Library Books 885,409             -                     42,942               928,351

Total Depreciable at Historical Cost 105,445,331      -                     575,794             106,021,125      

Less: Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings and Improvements (23,908,380)       -                     (2,567,767)         (26,476,147)
Equipment (4,702,741)         -                     (821,483)            (5,524,224)
Library Books (824,027)            -                     (20,736)              (844,763)

Total Accumulated Depreciation (29,435,148)       -                     (3,409,986)         (32,845,134)       

Depreciable Capital Assets, Net 76,010,183        -                     (2,834,192)         73,175,991        

Capital Assets, Net 104,922,326$    -$                   12,879,907$      117,802,233$    
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 
 

NOTE 6 – UNEARNED REVENUES 
 
At June 30, 2015 and 2014, the College’s unearned revenues were as follows: 
 

2015 2014

Unearned Student Tuition and Fees 829,828$           626,617$           

Unearend Grant Revenue:
Federal 10,323$             14,960$             
State 4,581                 3,000                 
Local 500                    -                         

Total Unearned Grant Revenue 15,404$             17,960$             
 

 
 
NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND HEALTH BENEFITS 
 
All required employees of the College are covered by either the Public Employees’ Retirement 
System (PERS) and the Alternate Benefit Program (ABP), which presently makes contributions to 
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association – College Retirement Equities Fund (TIAA/CREF), 
Aetna Life Insurance Company, Lincoln Life Insurance Company, Metropolitan Life Insurance 
Company, Travelers Life Insurance Company and VALIC. PERS is a cost-sharing, multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of New Jersey.  The ABP 
alternatives are administered by a separate Board of Trustees.  Generally all employees, except 
certain part-time employees, participate in one of these plans. 
 
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)  
 
PERS was established under the provisions of N.J.S.A.43:15A to provide coverage, including post-
retirement healthcare, to substantially all full-time employees of the State of New Jersey or public 
agencies provided the employee is not a member of another State of New Jersey administered 
retirement system.   
 
The PERS was established in January 1955 under provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15A and provides 
coverage to substantially all full time employees of the Authority provided the employee is not a 
member of another State administered retirement system.   Membership is mandatory for such 
employees and vesting occurs after 8 to 10 years of service for pension benefits and 25 years for 
post-retirement health care coverage. 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 
 

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND HEALTH BENEFITS (Continued) 
 
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)  (Continued) 
 
The following represents the membership tiers for PERS: 

 
Tier Definition 
  

1 Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007 
2 Employees eligible for enrollment after June 30, 2007 but before November 2, 2008 
3 Employees eligible for enrollment after November 1, 2008 but before May 22, 2010 
4 Employees eligible for enrollment after May 21, 2010 but before June 28, 2011 
5 Employees eligible for enrollment after June 27, 2011 

 
Service retirement benefits of the 1/55th of final average salary for each year of service credit is 
available to tiers 1 and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching 
age 62.   Service retirement benefits of 1/60th  of final average salary for each year of service 
credit is available to tier 4 members upon reaching age 62 and tier 5 members upon reaching age 65. 
 Early retirement benefits are available to tiers 1 and 2 members before reaching age 60, tiers 3 and 
4 before age 62 and tier 5 with 30 or more years of service credit before age 65.  Benefits are 
reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that a member retires prior to the retirement age of 
their respective tier.  Deferred retirement is available to members who have at least 10 years of 
service credit and have not reached the service retirement age for the respective tier. 
 
The State established and administers a Supplemental Annuity Collective Trust Fund (SACT) 
which  is  available  to  active  members  of  several  State-administered  retirement  systems  to 
purchase annuities to supplement the guaranteed benefits provided by their retirement system. 
The State or local government employers do not appropriate funds to SACT. 
 
The State also administers the Pension Adjustment Fund (PAF) which provides cost of living 
increases, equal to 60 percent of the change in the average consumer price index, to eligible 
retirees in all State-sponsored pension systems except SACT.  The cost of living increases for 
PERS are funded directly by each of the respective systems and are considered in the annual 
actuarial calculation of the required State contribution for that system. 
 
According to state law, all obligations of PERS will be assumed by the State of New Jersey 
should the PERS be terminated. 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 
 

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND HEALTH BENEFITS (Continued) 
 
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)  (Continued) 
 
The State of New Jersey, Department of Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues 
publicly available financial reports that include the financial statements and required supplementary 
information of the PERS.   The financial reports may be accessed via the New Jersey Division of 
Pensions and Benefits website at www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions. 
 
The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and requires contributions by active members 
and contributing employers.  Members contribute at a uniform rate.  Pursuant to the provisions of 
Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, the active member contribution rate increased from 5.5% of annual 
compensation to 6.5% plus an additional 1% phased-in over 7 years beginning in fiscal year 
2012.  The member contribution rate was 6.92% in the State fiscal year 2015.  The phase-in of 
the additional incremental member contribution rate takes place in July of each subsequent State 
fiscal year.  Employers’ contribution amounts are based on an actuarially determined rate.  The 
annual  employer  contributions  include  funding  for  basic  retirement  allowances  and  non-
contributory death benefits. 
 
Pursuant to the provision of Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, COLA increases were suspended for all 
current and future retirees of all retirement systems. 
 
The College’s and employees’ contributions to PERS for the past three years were as follows: 
 

Percentage Pensionable
Year Ended College of Covered Employee Employee

June 30, Contribution Payroll Contributions Salaries

2015 $886,640 11.96% $525,551 $7,510,201
2014 805,467 11.39% 505,478 7,411,708
2013 836,763 10.64% 459,484 7,068,978  

 
At June 30, 2015 and 2014, the College’s net pension liability for PERS was $20,149,451 and 
$20,430,646, respectively. 
 
The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total pension liability used to 
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.  The 
College’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the College’s long-
term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all 
participating entities, actuarially determined.  At June 30, 2014, Colleges PERS proportion was 
0.1076%, which was an increase of 0.0007% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2013.  
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 
 

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND HEALTH BENEFITS (Continued) 
 
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)  (Continued) 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2015, the College recognized PERS pension expense of $1,067,018.  At 
June 30, 2015, the College reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and accrual experience -$                        -$                        
Changes in assumptions 633,203              -                          
Net differences between projected and actual investment 

earnings on pension plan investments 1,200,032           
Changes in proportion 105,256              -                          
District contributions subsequent to

measurement date 886,483              

Total 1,624,942$         1,200,032$         
 

 
$886,483 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from College 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net 
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2016.  Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension 
expense as follows: 
 

Year Ended
June 30,

2016 (164,262)$         
2017 (164,262)           
2018 (164,262)           
2019 (164,262)           
2020 (164,262)           

Thereafter 359,736            

(461,573)$         
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 
 

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND HEALTH BENEFITS (Continued) 
 
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)  (Continued) 
 
Actuarial Assumptions 
 
The total pension liability for the June 30, 2014 measurement date was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of July 1, 2013, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2014.  The total pension liability 
for the June 30, 2013 measurement date was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2013. 
 This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the 
measurement: 
 

Inflation rate 
 

 3.01% 

Salary increases: 
     2012-2012 
 

 2.15 – 4.40% 

Thereafter 
 
 

 3.15 5.40% 
Based on age 

Investment rate of return  7.90% 
 
Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Health Male and Female Mortality Tables 
(setback 1 year for females) with adjustments for mortality improvements from the base year of 
2012 based on Projections Scale AA.  The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2013 valuation 
were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2008 to June 30, 
2011. 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 
 

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND HEALTH BENEFITS (Continued) 
 
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)  (Continued) 
 
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 
 
In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments is 
determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of 
Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries.  Best 
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in PER’s target asset 
allocation as of June 30, 2014 are summarized in the following table:  
 

Asset Class  
Target 

Allocation  

Long-Term 
Expected Real 

Rate of 
Return 

     

Cash  6.00%  0.80% 
Core Bonds  1.00%  2.49% 
Intermediate-Term Bonds  11.20%  2.26% 
Mortgages  2.50%  2.17% 
High Yield Bonds  5.50%  4.82% 
Inflation-Indexed Bonds  2.5%  3.51% 
Broad US Equities  25.90%  8.22% 
Developed Foreign Equities  12.70%  8.12% 
Emerging Market Equities  6.50%  9.91% 
Private Equity  8.25%  13.02% 
Hedge Funds / Absolute Return  12.25%  4.92% 
Real Estate (Property)  3.20%  5.80% 
Commodities  2.50%  5.35% 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 
 

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND HEALTH BENEFITS (Continued) 
 
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)  (Continued) 
 
Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.39% and 5.55% as of June 30, 
2014 and 2013, respectively.  This single blend discount rate was based on the long-term expected 
rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.9%, and a municipal bond rate of 4.29% and 4.63% 
as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond 
Index which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of 
AA/Aa or higher.  The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that 
contributions from plan members will be made based on the average of the last five years of 
condition made in relation to the last five years of recommended contributions.  Based on those 
assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make projected future 
benefit payments of current plan members through 2033.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of 
return on plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments through 2033, and the 
municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total 
pension liability.   
 
Sensitivity of the College’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount 
rate.   
 
The following presents the College’s proportionate share of the net pension liability of the as of June 
30, 2014, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the collective net 
pension liability would be if it was calculated using a discount rate that is 1% lower or 1% higher 
than the current rate: 
 

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(4.39%) (5.39%) (6.39%)

College's proportionate share of
PERS net pension liability 25,332,533$       20,149,451$       15,773,345$        

 
Pension Plan fiduciary net position 
 
Detailed information about the pension plans’ fiduciary net position are available in the separately 
issued financial reports. These reports may be accessed via the New Jersey Division of Pension and 
Benefits website at www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions. 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 
 

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND HEALTH BENEFITS (Continued) 
 
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)  (Continued) 
 
Payable to the pension plan 
 
At June 30, 2015 the College reported accounts payable to the PERS of $886,483 for the required 
actuarially determined contribution to PERS for the year ended June 30, 2015. 
 
Alternate Benefit Program Information (ABP) 
 
ABP provides the choice of seven investment carriers all of which are privately operated defined 
contribution retirement plans.  The College assumes no liability for ABP members other than 
payment of contributions.  ABP provides retirement and death benefits for, or on behalf of, those 
full-time professional employees and faculty members electing to participate in this optional 
retirement program.  Participation eligibility as well as contributory and non-contributory 
requirements are established by the State of New Jersey Retirement and Social Security Law. 
 
Employer contributions to ABP are paid by the State of New Jersey; however, such contributions 
have not been reflected as revenue and expense in the accompanying financial statements. 
 
Benefits are determined by the amount of individual accumulations and the retirement income option 
selected.  All benefits vest after the completion of one year of service.  Individually owned annuity 
contracts that provide for full ownership of retirement and survivor benefits are purchased at the 
time of vesting.  Participating College employees contribute 5% of salary and may contribute a 
voluntary additional contribution up to the maximum federal statutory limit, on a pre-tax basis.  
Employer contributions are 8%.  The State of New Jersey reimburses the College a portion of 
employer contributions for certain classified positions relating to direct student education.  The 
College’s and employees’ contributions to ABP for the past three years were as follows: 
 

Employer Contribution
Gross

Year Ended College State Employee Pensionable
June 30, Paid Reimbursed Contributions Wages

2015 815,557$           815,557$       509,723$       10,194,463$  
2014 806,395             806,395         503,997         10,079,938    
2013 812,227             812,227         507,642         10,152,838     
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 
 

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND HEALTH BENEFITS (Continued) 
 
Health Benefits 
 
Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, effective June 28, 2011, established new employee contribution 
requirements towards the cost of employer provided health benefit coverage. Employees are 
required to contribute a certain percentage of the cost of coverage. The rate of contribution is 
determined based on the employee’s annual salary and the selected level of coverage. The 
increased employee contributions will be phased in over a 4-year period for those employed prior to 
Chapter 78’s effective date with a minimum contribution required to be at least 1.5% of salary. For  
those  employed  on  or  after  June  28,  2011,  the  4-year  phase-in  does  not  apply  and 
contributions based on the full percentage rate of contribution are required. 
 
Under Chapter 78, certain future retirees eligible for employer-paid health care coverage at 
retirement will also be required to pay a percentage of the cost of their medical coverage 
determined on the basis of their annual retirement benefit. 
 
 
NOTE 8 - POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS 
 
The College contributes to the State Health Benefits Program (SHBP), a cost-sharing, multiple- 
employer defined benefit post-employment healthcare plan administered by the State of New 
Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits. SHBP was established in 1961 under N.J.S.A. 52:14-
17.25 et seq., to provide health benefits to State employees, retirees, and their dependents. Rules 
governing the operation and administration of the program are found in Title 17, Chapter 9 of the 
New   Jersey   Administrative   Code,   SHBP   provides   medical,   prescription   drugs,   mental 
health/substance  abuse,  and  Medicare  Part  B  reimbursement  to  retirees  and  their  covered 
dependents. 
 
The SHBP was extended to employees, retirees, and dependents of participating local public 
employers in 1964.  Local employers must adopt a resolution to participate in the SHBP.   
 
Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Contribution 
 
As a result of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 43, Financial 
Reporting for Post-employment Benefit Plans Other than Pension Plans (OPEB), effective for fiscal 
year 2007, the SHBP and the Prescription Drug Program (PDP) and Post-Retirement Medical (PRM) 
of the PERS and Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) are combined and reported as Health 
Benefits Program Funds.  The Health Benefits Program Funds are categorized into three sections: 
State, Local Education, and Local Government.   
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 
 

NOTE 8 - POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 
 
Employees of the College are part of the Health Benefits Program Fund - Local Education which 
provides State paid coverage to members of the TPAF who retire from a board of education or 
county college with 25 years of services or on a disability retirement.  Under the provisions of P.L. 
1992, c.126, the State also provides free coverage to members of the PERS and ABP who retire from 
a board of education or county college with 25 years of services or on a disability retirement. 
 
As of July 1, 2014, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the State had a $65 billion unfunded 
actuarial accrued liability for other postemployment benefits (OPEB) for education employees and 
retirees that become the obligation of the State of New Jersey upon retirement.   

 
Funded Status and Funding Progress 
 
The funded status and funding progress of the OPEB is based on actuarial valuations which involve 
estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events in the 
future. These amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past 
expectations and new estimates are made about the probability of future events.   
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
 
Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and are based on the benefits provided under 
the terms of the OPEB in effect at the time of each valuation and also consider the pattern of the 
sharing of costs between the employer and members at the point in time. The projection of benefits 
for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate the potential effects of legal 
contractual funding limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the employer and members in 
the future. 
 
In the July 1, 2014, actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit was used as the actuarial cost 
method, and the market value was used as asset valuation method for the OPEB. The actuarial 
assumptions included 4.50 percent for investment rate of return for the OPEB. 
 
The State Health Benefits Commission is the executive body established by the statute to be 
responsible for the operation of the SHBP. The State of New Jersey Division of Pensions and 
Benefits issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for the SHBP. That report may be obtained by writing to: State of New 
Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits, P.O. Box 295, Trenton, NJ 08625-0295 or by visiting their 
website at http://www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/pdf/financial/gasb-43-july2014.pdf. 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 
 

NOTE 8 - POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 
 
Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Contribution 
 
Under the provisions of P.L. 1992, c.126, the State is responsible for providing health benefits for 
members of PERS and APB who retired from a board of education or county college with 25 years 
of services.  For the year ended June 30, 2014, the State paid $165.8 million toward Chapter 126 for 
18,122 eligible retired members.  
 
The State sets the contribution rate based on a pay as you go basis and not on the annual required 
contribution of the employers (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the 
parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an 
ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial 
liabilities (or funding excess) of the plan over a period not to exceed thirty years. The State's 
contributions to the Health Benefits Program Fund for PERS and ABP retirees' postretirement 
benefits on behalf of the College was not determined or made available by the State of New Jersey. 
 
 
NOTE 9 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
 
The College accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick leave) as directed by 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board s Statement No. 16 (GASB), “Accounting for 
Compensated Absences.”  A liability for compensated absences attributable to services already 
rendered and not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and 
employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits. 
 
College’s employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in accordance with the 
College’s personnel policy.  Upon termination, employees are paid for accrued vacation.  The 
College’s policy permits employees to accumulate unused sick leave and carry forward the full 
amount to subsequent years.  Upon retirement employees shall be paid by the College for the unused 
sick leave in accordance with the College’s agreements with the various employee unions.  The 
College policies allow for payments of accumulated sick time, not to exceed $15,000, to employees 
with ten years of service or more. 
 
In the Statement of Net Assets, the liabilities are reported in two components – current (amounts due 
within one year) and noncurrent (amounts due in more than one year).   
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 
 

NOTE 9 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES (Continued) 
 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the following changes occurred in liabilities 
reported as compensated absences: 
 

Balance at Balance at Current
June 30, 2014 Additions Deductions June 30, 2015 Portion

Compensated Absences 2,515,590$        231,158$           258,897$           2,487,851$        867,385$           

Balance at Balance at Current
June 30, 2013 Additions Deductions June 30, 2014 Portion

Compensated Absences 2,498,209$        250,722$           233,341$           2,515,590$        908,160$           

 
 
The noncurrent portion of compensated absences as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 was $1,620,466 and 
$1,607,430, respectively. 
 
 
NOTE 10 - LEASE COMMITMENTS 
 
The College leases classrooms, office space and office equipment classified as operating leases.  
Rental expense was approximately $824,886 in 2015 and $841,641 in 2014. 
 
Future minimum rental commitments under and these operating leases approximate the following: 
 

Year Ending
June 30, Amount

2016 614,950$           
2017 564,874             
2018 156,482             
2019 144,900             
2020 144,900              

 
The College sublets certain leased classrooms on a month-to-month lease. Rental income for the 
year ended  was $27,118 and$30,618, respectively.   
 
The College rents property under a month to month agreement.  Rental income for the years ended  
was $28,188 and$32,400, respectively.  
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 
 

NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The College is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The College maintains 
commercial insurance coverage for property and liability.   
 
For worker’s compensation insurance the College belongs to the New Jersey Community College 
Insurance Pool Worker’s Compensation Fund (the “Insurance Pool”).  The Insurance Pool was 
created by agreement among the founding community colleges, on June 24, 1987, a non-profit self-
insurance pool, pursuant to the provisions of the New Jersey State Government Regulations Act, 
Chapter 204, P.L. 1985.  Effective July 1, 1987, the Insurance Pool established a Workers’ 
Compensation Fund providing workers’ compensation insurance to its members.  Premium 
payments are made to the insurance pool by participating community colleges as determined by the 
Insurance Pool’s independent insurance consultant.  
 
 
NOTE 12 - FINANCIAL DEPENDENCY 
 
One of the College’s largest sources of revenue is appropriations from Hudson County and the State 
of New Jersey.  The College is economically dependent on these appropriations to carry on its 
operations. 
 
 
NOTE 13 - CONTINGENCIES 

 
Litigation 
 
The College maybe party to legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of 
business.  In the opinion of management, the ultimate outcome of the claims and litigation, if any, 
will not have a material adverse effect on the College’s financial position. 
 
Grants 
 
The College received financial assistance from the State of New Jersey and the U.S. Government in 
the form of grants and financial assistance.  Entitlement to the funds is generally conditional upon 
compliance with terms and conditions of the grant agreements and applicable regulations, including 
expenditure of the funds for eligible purposes.  The College is subject to the requirements of the 
Single Audit Act of 1984, as amended in 1996, which mandates that all revenues and expenditures 
from the grants and financial assistance are audited in conjunction with the College’s financial 
statements for compliance with grant requirements.  As of June 30, 2015, the College estimates that 
no material liabilities will result from such audits. 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey)

SCHEDULE OF THE COLLEGE'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS)

LAST TWO FISCAL YEARS

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014

District's proportion of the net pension liability 0.107551610% 0.1068996500%

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability 20,136,604$    20,430,646$    

District's covered-employee payroll 7,411,708$      7,068,978$      

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability
as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 271.69% 289.02%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total pension liability 52.08% 48.72%
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey)
SCHEDULE OF COLLEGE CONTRIBUTIONS 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS)
LAST TWO FISCAL YEARS

J 30 2015 J 30 2014June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014

Contractually required contribution 886,640$         805,467$         

Contributions in relation to the
contractually required contribution 886,640          805,467           

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                      -$                     

District's covered-employee payroll 7,411,708$      7,068,978$      

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll 11.96% 11.39%
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey)

NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
LAST TWO FISCAL YEARS

Changes in benefit terms: None 
 
Changes in assumptions: The discount rate changed from the rate as of June 30, 2013 to the rate as of June 30, 2014, in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 67. 
 
Method and assumptions used in calculations of employer’s actuarially determined contributions The actuarially determined 
contributions are calculated as of July 1 preceding the fiscal year in which the contributions are reported.  Unless otherwise 
noted above, the following actuarial methods and assumptions were used to determine rates in the schedule of employer
contributions. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN  
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
The Board of Trustees 
Hudson County Community College 
Jersey City, New Jersey 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of the Hudson County Community College (the “College”), a component unit of 
Hudson County, New Jersey, which collectively comprise the College’s basic financial 
statements and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
College’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 15, 2016.  
The financial statements of the Hudson County Community College Foundation, Inc., the 
discretely presented component unit of the College, were audited by other auditors for the years 
ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, whose report dated November 5, 2015 expressed an unmodified 
opinion on those statements. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered  the College's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of  the 
College’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
College’s internal control.  
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the 
deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as findings 
FS2015-01 and FS2015-02 to be significant deficiencies.  
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding 
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters  
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Example Entity's financial statements 
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 
  
The College’s Response to Findings 
 
The College’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. The College’s response was not subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express 
no opinion on it. 

 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 
 
 

 
      _____________________________    

       DONOHUE, GIRONDA, DORIA 
      & TOMKINS, LLC 
      Certified Public Accountants 

 
Bayonne, New Jersey 
March 15, 2016 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
FEDERAL AND STATE PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND  
NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 04-04 AND/OR 15-08 

 
The Board of Trustees 
Hudson County Community College 
Jersey City, New Jersey 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program  

 
We have audited the Hudson County Community College’s (the “College”) compliance with the 
types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB 
Circular 04-04 and/or 15-08 Compliance Supplements that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of the College’s major federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 
2015.  The College’s major federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s 
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the College’s major federal and 
state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, OMB Circular A-133, Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and New Jersey’s OMB Circular 04-04 and/or 
15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid.  Those standards, 
OMB Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04 and/or 15-08 require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
and state program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the College’s 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in 
the circumstances.   
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal and state program.  However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the College’s 
compliance. 
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Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program 
 
In our opinion, the College complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal and state 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2015. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
Management of the College is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing our 
audit of compliance, we considered the College’s internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal and state program to 
determine auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on compliance for each major federal and state program and to test and report on internal control 
over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04 and/or 
15-08, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal 
control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal or state program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or 
state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency 
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe 
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by 
those charged with governance.   
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
OMB Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04 and/or 15-08. Accordingly, this report is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 

______________________________   
 DONOHUE, GIRONDA, DORIA & 

TOMKINS, LLC 
Certified Public Accountants 

 
Bayonne, New Jersey 
March 15, 2016 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 

NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE  

 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

 

NOTE 1 - GENERAL 
 
The accompanying Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance 
include federal and state award activity of the Hudson County Community College (the “College”).  
The College is defined in Note 1 to the College’s basic financial statements.  All federal and state 
awards received directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal and state awards received 
directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal and state awards passed through other 
governmental agencies, are included on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State 
Financial Assistance. 
 
 
NOTE 2 - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
 
The accompanying schedules of expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance 
include the Federal and State of New Jersey grant activity of Hudson County Community College 
(the “College”) and are presented on the accrual basis of accounting.  The information in these 
schedules is presented in accordance with the requirements of U.S. Office of Management and 
Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and New 
Jersey Office of Management and Budget Circular 04-04 and/or 15-08, Single Audit Policy for 
Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid.  Therefore, some amounts presented in 
these schedules may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic 
financial statements. 
 
 
NOTE 3 - LOAN PROGRAMS 
 
The College is responsible only for the performance of certain administrative duties with respect to 
the Federal Direct Student Loan Program and the State of New Jersey Alternative Loan and New 
Jersey Class Loans and, accordingly, these loans are not included in the College’s basic financial 
statements.  It is not practical to determine the balance of loans outstanding to students of the College 
under this program as of June 30, 2015.   
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey)

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statement

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified
  

Internal control over financial reporting:

1) Material weakness(es) identified? yes  no

2) Significant deficiencies identified?  yes none reported

Noncompliance material to basic financial 
statements noted? yes  no

Federal Awards

Internal Control over major programs:

1) Material weakness(es) identified? yes  no

2) Significant deficiencies identified? yes  none reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with section .510(a) of Circular A-133? yes  no

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

84.033,84.007,84.063,84.268 Student Financial Assistance Cluster
Carl D. Perkins  Vocational Education and

84.048 Applied Technology Education Grant

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and Type B Programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes  no

$1,059,258
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey)

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results

State Awards

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes  no

Internal control over financial reporting

1) Material weakness(es) identified? yes  no

2) Significant deficiencies identified that are no
considered to be material weaknessess? yes  none reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with NJOMB Circular 04-04
 and/or 15-08? yes  no

Identification of major programs

State Grant/Project Number(s) Name of State Program

14-100-074-2401-001,002 Educational Opportunity Fund
14-100-082-2155-015 Operational Costs
14-100-082-2155-017 Alternative Benefit Program

$382,908

55



HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 
 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings 
 

 
(This Section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, fraud, illegal acts, 
violations of provisions of contracts and grant agreements, and abuse related to the financial 
statements for which Government Auditing Standards requires reporting in a Circular A-133 audit.  
See paragraphs 13.15 and 13.35.)  
 
Finding FS2015-01 
 
Cash receipts remitted to the Bursar’s office are being deposited on a weekly basis.    
 
Recommendation 
 
Cash receipts remitted to the Bursar’s office should be deposited within 48 hours of receipt. 
 
View of Responsible Officials 
 
The Board of Trustees has adopted a resolution authorizing a police escort to assure the safety of 
employees while depositing cash receipts on a more frequent basis.  The College is in the process of 
implementing the resolution so that cash receipts can be deposited in a timely manner. 
 
 
Finding FS2015-02 
 
Community education revenue reports are generated by the Ellucian system and submitted to 
Finance.  However, there is no mechanism in place to verify the reports for accuracy prior to 
submission. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Community education should review revenue reports monthly for accuracy.  This is a repeat finding 
from the prior year. 
 
View of Responsible Officials 
 
The Community Education Center will verify reports for accuracy prior to submission to the Finance 
Department. 

56



HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 
 

Section III – Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance Findings and Questioned Costs 
 
 
(This Section identified audit findings required to be reported by Section .510(a) of OMB Circular 
A-133 and New Jersey OMB Circular Letter 04-04 and/or 15-08.) 
 

No Findings Noted 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR-YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED 
COSTS AS PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT 

 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

This section identifies the status of prior year findings related to the basic financial statements 
and federal awards and state financial assistance that are required to be reported in accordance 
with Chapter 6.12 of Government Auditing Standards, U.S. OMB Circular A-133 [Section 
.315(a) (b)], and N.J. OMB Circular Letter 04-04 and/or 15-08.) 
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
 
Finding FS2014-01 

Formal policies have not been established to escheat monies to the appropriate federal or state 
agency for unclaimed grant, vendor and payroll checks. It was noted during the audit that 
approximately $416,000 was accrued as a liability for unclaimed checks.  In addition, the 
College should review old outstanding checks in the operating account from August 1, 2010 
through December 31, 2012 and determine the disposition of these funds. 
 
Current Year Status 
 
Formal procedures have been initiated to escheat monies to the appropriate federal or state 
agencies for unclaimed grant, vendor and payroll checks.  The accrued liability for unclaimed 
checks has been substantially reduced; however a balances remains of $168,758 at June 30, 2015 
and old outstanding checks should still be reviewed.  This finding is no longer considered a 
reportable instance of noncompliance and is only communicated to management and those 
charged with governance in a separate letter. 
 
 
Finding FS2014-02 
    
The College does not maintain a fixed asset inventory.  Repair and maintenance and capital 
expense accounts are reviewed at year end to determine assets to be capitalized.  Our review of 
prior year capitalized assets and related accumulated depreciation calculations determined that 
fixed assets were not depreciated properly resulting in a material prior period adjustment of 
$6,577,723.  In addition, there is no mechanism in place for fixed asset disposal and removal 
from the fixed asset listings available for review. 
 
Current Year Status 
 
The College maintained a fixed asset inventory; therefore this finding has been corrected. 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR-YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED 
COSTS AS PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT 

 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (Continued) 
 
Finding FS2014-03 
  
Documentation supporting compliance with “Pay to Play” for the payment for services in excess 
of the $17,500 threshold was not available. During our review of procurement procedures, there 
is no mechanism in place to determine when a vendor exceeds the $17,500 threshold for 
compliance. 
 
Current Year Status 
 
Mechanisms were in place to determine when aggregate expenditures to a vendor exceeds the 
procurement thresholds, however such mechanisms were not monitored with formal procedures.  
This finding is no longer considered a reportable instance of noncompliance and is only 
communicated to management and those charged with governance in a separate letter. 
 
 
Finding FS2014-04 
 
The College has no procedures in place to obtain Business Registration Certificates from vendors 
once the threshold is exceeded. In addition, purchase orders are not always utilized. Our test of 
transactions and audit procedures on procurement noted that: 
 In 89 instances, no purchase order was utilized 
 In 52 instances, Business Registration Certificates were not obtained when required. 
 
Current Year Status 
 
Purchase orders were utilized for purchases and this portion of the finding has been correct.  
Business Registration Certificates were obtained from vendors where the aggregate expenditure 
threshold was exceeded.  However, possessions of Business Registration Certificates were not 
being verified in a timely manner.  This portion of the finding is no longer considered to be a 
deficiency in internal control and is only communicated to management and those charged with 
governance in a separate letter. 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR-YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED 
COSTS AS PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT 

 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (Continued) 
 
Finding FS2014-05 
 
Our audit procedures applied to new hires indicates there are inadequate internal controls in 
place to review employee information for accuracy.  In two instances, it was noted that the 
employees were paid the incorrect amount. 
 
Current Year Status 
 
Our audit procedures applied to new hires and current employees did not disclose any instances 
of employees being paid the incorrect amount.  Therefore this finding has been corrected. 

 
Finding FS2014-06 
 
Our review of cash receipts indicated deposits are not made in a timely manner. In 18 instances 
out of 25 transactions selected for review, cash and checks remitted to the Bursar’s office are not 
being deposited in a timely manner. 
 
Current Year Status 
 
Cash receipts remitted to the Bursar’s office are being deposited on a weekly basis.  Although, 
the amount of daily cash receipts has decreased substantially, cash receipts should be deposited 
in a timely manner.  Therefore, this finding is repeated as a significant deficiency in internal 
control. 
 
 
Finding FS2014-07 
 
Community education revenue reports are generated by the Ellucian system and submitted to 
Finance.  However, there is no mechanism in place to verify the reports for accuracy prior to 
submission. 
 
Current Year Status 
 
This is still no mechanism in place to verify the Community education revenue reports for 
accuracy prior to submission.  Therefore this finding is repeated as a significant deficiency in 
internal control. 
 
 

60



HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR-YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED 
COSTS AS PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT 

 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

SINGLE AUDIT FINDING 
 
Federal Awards 
 
United States Department of Education 
Student Financial Aid Cluster – Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants 
CFDA Number:  84.007 
 
Finding SA14-01 
 
The Human Resource Department is not recording new hire information and their allocation to 
federal grants in a timely manner.  This results in inaccurate allocation of compensation to 
federal grants. 
 
Current Year Status 
 
The Human Resource Department is recording new hire and current employee information and 
their allocations to federal grants in a timely manner.  Therefore this finding has been corrected. 
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